WIFI Passcode:

CITY OF SWEET HOME guestwifi
PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING AGENDA

April 6, 2020, 6:30 PM
City Hall Council Chambers, 3225 Main Street
Sweet Home, OR 97386

PLEASE silence all cell phones — Anyone who wishes to speak, please sign in.

1. Callto Order and Pledge of Allegiance
2. Roll Call of Commissioners:

Jeff Parker (Chair), Lance Gatchell (Vice Chair), Henry Wolthuis, Eva Jurney, Greg Stephens, Greg
Korn

3. Public Comment. This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Planning
Commission on topics that are not listed on the agenda.

4. Meeting Minutes: March 2, 2020

5. Public Hearing for File LA20-01: This legislative amendment, LA 20-01, consists of text
amendments to Chapter 15.12, Flood Hazard Area Regulations, of the Sweet Home Municipal Code
(SHMC). The proposed text amendments were identified by a Department of Land Conservation and
Development (DLCD) review and the text amendments are required for compliance with minimum
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and state standards.

This proposal includes amendments to following sections of the SHMC 15.12: 15.12.010 Statutory
Authority; 15.12.020 Statement of Purpose; 15.12.025 Methods of reducing flood losses; 15.12.030
Definitions; 15.12.060 Abrogation and greater restrictions; 15.12.100 Designation of Building Official
as local administrator; 15.12.110 Application for a Building Permit, 15.12.120 Duties and
responsibilities of Building Inspector; 15.12.130 General Standards; 15.12.140 Lands to which
chapter applies; 15.12.170 Appeal Board; 15.12.150 Floodways; and 15.12.190 Penalties for
noncompliance.

6. Staff Update on Planning Projects

7. Adjournment

Page | 1 The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, advanced
notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development Department at 541-367-8113.



Persons interested in commenting on these issues should submit testimony in writing to the Community
and Economic Development Department Office located in City Hall prior to the hearing or attend the
meeting and give testimony verbally. Persons who wish to testify will be given the opportunity to do so
by the Chair of the Commission at the Planning Commission meeting. Such testimony should address
the zoning ordinance criteria which are applicable to the request. The Sweet Home Planning
Commission welcomes your interest in these agenda items. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda
includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be considered at the meeting; however, the
Commission may consider additional subjects as well. This meeting is open to the public and interested
citizens are invited to attend.

The failure of an issue to be raised in a hearing, in person or by letter, or failure to provide sufficient
specificity to afford the decision maker an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal to the
Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.

A copy of the application, all documents and evidence relied upon by the applicant and applicable criteria
are available for inspection at no cost and a copy will be provided at reasonable cost. A copy of the staff
report will be available for inspection at no cost at least seven days prior to the hearing and a copy will be
provided at reasonable cost. Please contact the Community and Economic Development Department at
3225 Main Street, Sweet Home, Oregon 97386; Phone: (541) 367-8113.

Page | 2 The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, advanced
notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development Department at 541-367-8113.



Planning Commission Process and Procedure for Public Hearings

o Open each Hearing individually
o Review Hearing Procedure (SHMC 17.12.130)
o Hearing Disclosure Statement (ORS 197.763)

o Atthe commencement of a hearing under a comprehensive plan or land use regulation, a statement
shall be made to those in attendance that:

READ: “The applicable substantive criteria are listed in the staff report. Testimony, arguments and
evidence must be directed toward the criteria described or other criteria in the plan or land use
regulation which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue accompanied
by statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker and the parties an opportunity to
respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.”

o Declarations by the Commission:

o Personal Bias - Prejudice or prejudgment of the facts to such a degree that an official is incapable of
making an objective decision based on the merits of the case.

o Conflict of Interest - Does any member of the Commission or their immediate family have any financial
or other interests in the application that has to be disclosed.

o ExParte Information - The Planning Commission is bound to base their decision on information
received in the Public Hearing and what is presented in testimony. If a member of the Planning
Commission has talked with an applicant or has information from outside the Public Hearing it needs
to be shared at that time so that everyone in the audience has an opportunity to be aware of it and the
rest of the Planning Commission is aware of it. In that way it can be rebutted and can be discussed
openly.

o Staff Report

o Review of application

o Discussion of relative Criteria that must be used

o During this presentation the members of the Planning Commission may ask questions of the staff to
clarify the application or any part of the Zoning Ordinance or the applicable information.

o Testimony
o Applicant’s Testimony
o Proponents’ Testimony
o Testimony from those wishing to speak in favor of the application
o Opponents’ Testimony
o Testimony from those wishing to speak in opposition of the application
o Neutral Testimony
o Testimony from those that are neither in favor nor in opposition of the application.
o Rebuttal
o Close Public Hearing
o Discussion and Decision among Planning Commissioners

o Motion
=  Approval
= Denial
= Approval with Conditions
= Continue

o Ifthere is an objection to a decision it can be appealed to the City Council. The Planning Commission
shall set the number of days for the appeal period. At the time the City Council goes through the Public
Hearing Process all over again.

o Recommendation made by Planning Commission—City Council makes final decision.
o If you have a question, please wait until appropriate time and then direct your questions to the
Planning Commission. Please speak one at a time so the recorder knows who is speaking.

Page | 3 The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, advanced
notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development Department at 541-367-8113.



WIFI Passcode:

ClTY OF SWEET HOME guestwifi
PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING MINUTES

March 2, 2020, 6:30 PM
City Hall Council Chambers, 3225 Main Street
Sweet Home, OR 97386

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call of Commissioners:

Chairman Parker Present

Commissioner Gatchell Present

Commissioner Wolthuis Present (arrived 6:40 PM)
Commissioner Jurney Present

Commissioner Stephens Present

Commissioner Herb Absent (resigned)
Commissioner Korn Present

Staff:

Joe Graybill, Staff Engineer; Blair Larsen, CEDD Director; Angela Clegg, Associate Planner

Guests:

Steve Elliot, 1431 Meadowlark Lane, Sweet Home, OR 97386
Jessica Keeney, 1969 37" Circle, Sweet Home, OR 97386

Public Comment:
None
Review and Approval of Meeting Minutes: February 3, 2020

Comments Included: Edits, page 2 and page 5.
Commissioner Stephens moved to approve the October 7, 2019 meeting minutes with changes.
Commissioner Gatchell seconded the motion to approve the meeting minutes with changes.

Question was Called:

Aye 5
Nay 0
Absent 1

Motion Passed (5) Ayes to (0) Nays

Public Hearing for File CU20-01: The applicant is requesting a conditional use permit in order to
establish a home occupation (home business) on their property. The home occupation would consist
of a hair salon that would be operated by a resident of the property within the dwelling located on the
property. The home is set back off 37th Circle by approximately 90 feet and has approximately 3000
square feet of paved parking. The applicant will be the only hairdresser and expects only one car at
a time. The subject property contains 10,691.13 square feet and is in the Residential Industrial
Transition (RMT) Zone.

Page | 1 The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, advanced
notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development Department at 541-367-8113,



PUBLIC HEARING OPENED AT 6:35 PM
Chairman Parker read the description of the application and the Planning Commission criteria.

The applicable substantive criteria are listed in the staff report. Testimony, arguments and
evidence must be directed toward the criteria described or other criteria in the plan or land
use regulation which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue
accompanied by statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker and the
parties an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of
Appeals based on that issue.

Personal Bias: None
Conflict of Interest: None
Exparte Information:  None

Comments/Discussion:
Associate Planner, Clegg, reviewed the criteria in the staff report.
The applicant, Jessica Keeney, testified on behalf of her application.

Commissioner Jurney asked the applicant if she looked at commercial properties instead of
residential. The applicant stated that she worked in a commercial location for 16 years.

Commissioner Gatchell asked about the clientele. There was a discussion about a sign at the
residence and obtaining new clientele. Clegg stated that because the salon is in a residential
zone there are restrictions for signs. Clegg and the applicant had a conversation when the
application was turned in and the applicant chose not to do a sign at this time.

Testimony in Favor: None
Testimony in Opposition: None
Neutral Testimony: None
Rebuttal: None

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED AT 6:46 PM

Planning Commission discussed the applications.
Comments/Concerns Included:

The Commissioners discussed the Condition of Approval #3: The home occupation will limit their
operating hours to 9:00 AM to 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday. The Commissioners did not
agree about the specific hours of operation and chose to reopen the public hearing in order to
discuss hours of operation with the applicant.

PUBLIC HEARING REOPENED AT 6:54 PM

The Commissioners asked the applicant what hours would work best for her. The applicant stated
that she would prefer later in the evening to accommodate working clients. The Commissioners
asked her if 10:00 AM to 7:00 PM would work for her. The applicant agreed to those times.

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED AT 6:55 PM

Chairman Parker: Supports the home business. Would like to allow less strict
operating hours.

Commissioner Gatchell:  Supports the business. Supports the idea of a sign and definite
hours of operations.

Commissioner Jurney: Supports the business. Doesn't encourage placing a sign in the
neighborhood. Supports the idea of definite operating hours.

Page | 2 The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, advanced
notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development Department at 541-367-8113.



Commissioner Stephens: Agrees with Commissioner Jurney.
Commissioner Wolthuis:  Supports the business but does not support strict operating hours.
Commissioner Korn: Supports the business as presented in the application.

Commissioner Gatchell moved to approve application CU20-01 and thereby permit the Conditional
Use at 1969 37" Circle Sweet Home, Oregon 97386; adopting the findings of fact listed in Section IV
of the staff report, with changes to Conditional Use #3 limiting the hours of operation to 10:00 AM to
7:00 PM, the setting of a 12-day appeal period from the date of the mailing of the decision, and
hereby direct staff to prepare an order to be signed by the Chair to memorialize this decision.

Commissioner Stephens seconded the motion to approve with changes to Condition of Approval
#3.

Question was called

Aye: 6
Nay: 0
Absent: 0

Motion Passed (6) Ayes to (0) Nays

Public Hearing for File CU20-02: The applicant is requesting a conditional use permit in order to
establish a home occupation (home business) on their property. The home occupation would consist
of contract design service that would be operated by a resident of the property within the dwelling
located on the property. The home is set back off Meadowlark Lane by approximately 35 feet and set
back from the intersection of Meadowlark Lane and Strawberry Loop by approximately 77 feet. The
applicant will be the only employee and will not have customers visit his home. The subject property
contains 10,806.32 square feet and is in the Residential Low Density (R-1) Zone.

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED AT 6:58 PM
Chairman Parker read the description of the application and the Planning Commission criteria.

The applicable substantive criteria are listed in the staff report. Testimony, arguments and
evidence must be directed toward the criteria described or other criteria in the plan or land
use regulation which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue
accompanied by statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker and the
parties an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of
Appeals based on that issue.

Personal Bias: None
Conflict of Interest: None
Exparte Information:  None

Comments/Discussion:
Associate Planner, Clegg, reviewed the criteria in the staff report.
The applicant, Steven Elliot, testified on behalf of his application.

No questions from the Commissioners.

Testimony in Favor: None
Testimony in Opposition: None
Neutral Testimony: None
Rebuttal: None .
Page | 3 The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, advanced

notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development Department at 541-367-8113.



PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED AT 7:05 PM

Planning Commission discussed the applications.
Comments/Concerns Included:

Chairman Parker: Supports the business and application as presented.
Commissioner Gatchell:  Supports the business and application as presented.
Commissioner Jurney: Supports the business and application as presented.

Commissioner Stephens: Supports the business and application as presented.
Commissioner Wolthuis:  Supports the business and application as presented.
Commissioner Korn: Supports the business and application as presented.

Commissioner Korn moved to approve application CU20-02 and thereby permit the Conditional Use
at 1431 Meadowlark Lane, Sweet Home, Oregon 97386; adopting the findings of fact listed in Section
IV of the staff report, the setting of a 12-day appeal period from the date of the mailing of the
decision, and hereby direct staff to prepare an order to be signed by the Chair to memorialize this
decision.

Commissioner Jurney seconded the motion to approve.

Question was called

Aye: 6
Nay: 0
Absent: 0

Motion Passed (6) Ayes to (0) Nays

Flood Hazard Area Regulations review

Clegg, Associate Planner and Larsen, CEDD Director, gave a brief introduction to the Floodplain
Ordinance and the expected Ordinance changes.

Sweet Home Code Update Next Steps
No updates as of this meeting Planning Commission meeting.
Planning Commission Training:
Monday, March 16, 2020 at 6:30 PM, City Hall Council Chambers
Commissioner Gatchell informed staff that he will be gone for the training.
Staff Update on Planning Projects

Larsen, CEDD Director, gave a brief update on the downtown corridor and vacant building
projects.

Clegg mentioned the Arbor Day Celebration.

Commissioner Jurney stated that the September meeting falls on Labor Day, so it will need to be
rescheduled.

Adjournment 7:31 PM

Persons interested in commenting on these issues should submit testimony in writing to the Community
and Economic Development Department Office located in City Hall prior to the hearing or attend the
meeting and give testimony verbally. Persons who wish to testify will be given the opportunity to do so
by the Chair of the Commission at the Planning Commission meeting. Such testimony should address

Page | 4 The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disabilily that requires accommodation, advanced

notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development Department at 541-367-8113.



the zoning ordinance criteria which are applicable to the request. The Sweet Home Planning
Commission welcomes your interest in these agenda items. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda
includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be considered at the meeting; however, the
Commission may consider additional subjects as well. This meeting is open to the public and interested
citizens are invited to attend.

The failure of an issue to be raised in a hearing, in person or by letter, or failure to provide sufficient
specificity to afford the decision maker an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal to the
Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.

A copy of the application, all documents and evidence relied upon by the applicant and applicable criteria
are available for inspection at no cost and a copy will be provided at reasonable cost. A copy of the staff
report will be available for inspection at no cost at least seven days prior to the hearing and a copy will be
provided at reasonable cost. Please contact the Community and Economic Development Department at
3225 Main Street, Sweet Home, Oregon 97386; Phone: (541) 367-8113.

OAAL
Jeff Pdrker) Chairperson
Sweet Home Planning Commission

Respectfully submitted by Angela Clegg, Associate Planner

Page | 5 The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, advanced
notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development Department at 541-367-8113.



Planning Commission Process and Procedure for Public Hearings

o Open each Hearing individually
o Review Hearing Procedure (SHMC 17.12.130)
o Hearing Disclosure Statement (ORS 197.763)

o Atthe commencement of a hearing under a comprehensive plan or land use regulation, a statement
shall be made to those in attendance that:

READ: “The applicable substantive criteria are listed in the staff report. Testimony, arguments and
evidence must be directed toward the criteria described or other criteria in the plan or land use
regulation which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue accompanied
by statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker and the parties an opportunity to
respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.”

o Declarations by the Commission:

o Personal Bias - Prejudice or prejudgment of the facts to such a degree that an official is incapable of
making an objective decision based on the merits of the case.

o Conflict of Interest - Does any member of the Commission or their immediate family have any financial
or other interests in the application that has to be disclosed.

o ExParte Information - The Planning Commission is bound to base their decision on information
received in the Public Hearing and what is presented in testimony. If a member of the Planning
Commission has talked with an applicant or has information from outside the Public Hearing it needs
to be shared at that time so that everyone in the audience has an opportunity to be aware of it and the
rest of the Planning Commission is aware of it. In that way it can be rebutted and can be discussed
openly.

o Staff Report

o Review of application

o Discussion of relative Criteria that must be used

o During this presentation the members of the Planning Commission may ask questions of the staff to
clarify the application or any part of the Zoning Ordinance or the applicable information.

o Testimony
o Applicant's Testimony
o Proponents’ Testimony
o Testimony from those wishing to speak in favor of the application
o Opponents’ Testimony
o Testimony from those wishing to speak in opposition of the application
o Neutral Testimony
o Testimony from those that are neither in favor nor in opposition of the application.
o Rebuttal
o Close Public Hearing
o Discussion and Decision among Planning Commissioners
o Motion
= Approval
= Denial
= Approval with Conditions
= Continue
o Ifthere is an objection to a decision it can be appealed to the City Council. The Planning Commission
shall set the number of days for the appeal period. At the time the City Council goes through the Public

Hearing Process all over again.

o Recommendation made by Planning Commission—City Council makes final decision.

o Ifyou have a question, please wait until appropriate time and then direct your questions to the
Planning Commission. Please speak one at a time so the recorder knows who is speaking.

Page | 6 The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, advanced

notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development Department at 541-367-8113.



City of Sweet Home
3225 Main Street
Sweet Home, OR 97386
541-367-8113

Community and Economic Development Department Fax 541-367-5113
Ore_qftmm pest! www.sweethomeor.gov

Legislative Amendment (LA) 20-01

This legislative amendment, LA 20-01, consists of text amendments to Chapter 15.12, Flood
Hazard Area Regulations, of the Sweet Home Municipal Code (SHMC). The proposed text
amendments were identified by a Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD)
review and the text amendments are required for compliance with minimum National Flood
Insurance Program (NFIP) and state standards.

This proposal includes amendments to following sections of the SHMC 15.12: 15.12.010
Statutory Authority; 15.12.020 Statement of Purpose; 15.12.025 Methods of reducing flood
losses; 15.12.030 Definitions; 15.12.060 Abrogation and greater restrictions; 15.12.100
Designation of Building Official as local administrator; 15.12.110 Application for a Building
Permit, 15.12.120 Duties and responsibilities of Building Inspector; 15.12.130 General
Standards; 15.12.140 Lands to which chapter applies; 15.12.170 Appeal Board; 15.12.150
Floodways; and 15.12.190 Penalties for noncompliance.

FILE NUMBER: LA 20-01

REVIEW AND

DECISION CRITERIA: Sweet Home Municipal Code Section(s): 15.12

PLANNING COMMISSION

HEARING DATE &TIME: April 6, 2020 at 6:30 PM

LOCATION: City Hall Council Chambers 3225 Main Street, Sweet Home,
Oregon 97386

CITY COUNCIL

HEARING DATE &TIME: April 14, 2020 at 6:30 PM

LOCATION: City Hall Council Chambers 3225 Main Street, Sweet Home,
Oregon 97386

STAFF CONTACT: Angela Clegg, Associate Planner
Phone: (541) 367-8113;
Email: aclegg@sweethomeor.gov

REPORT DATE: March 30, 2020

Attachment A: Draft Ordinance


mailto:aclegg@sweethomeor.gov

CITY OF SWEET HOME
ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SWEET HOME MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 15.12 -
FLOOD HAZARD AREA REGULATIONS

WHEREAS, the State of Oregon has, in ORS 197.175, delegated the responsibility to local
governmental units to adopt floodplain management regulations designed to promote the public
health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry;

WHEREAS, these floodplain management regulations include Sweet Home Municipal Code
Chapter 15.12, the FEMA Flood Insurance Study dated September 29, 2010 and the revised
date December 27, 2012, and the Flood Insurance Rate Maps dated September 29, 2010;

WHEREAS, after coordination between the State Department of Land Conservation and
Development and the City, and as a member of the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP),
the City initiated these text changes to SHMC Title 15, Chapter 15.12, to amend the City Flood
Hazard Area Regulations;

WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 197.610, the City provided DLCD with Form 1 notice of these
proposed SHMC Title 15, Chapter 15.12, text changes on February 7, 2020;

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public work session on March 2, 2020, to provide
an open forum for discussion of the amendments to Chapter 15.12;

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public work session on March 10, 2020, to provide an open
forum for discussion of the amendments to Chapter 15.12;

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on April 6, 2020 for the proposed
amendments to Chapter 15.12;

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission followed the text amendment procedures under YMC
9.84.020 and has provided a report to the City Council along with its recommendation to
consider the proposed text changes;

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on these proposed text changes on April 14,
2020;

NOW THEREFORE, the City of Sweet Home ordains as follows:

Section 1. Sweet Home Municipal Code Chapter 15.12, Flood Hazard Area Regulations

City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



CHAPTER 15.12 - FLOOD HAZARD AREA REGULATIONS

15.12.010 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION

The State of Oregon has in ORS 197.175 delegated the responsibility to local governmental
units to adopt floodplain management regulations designed to promote the public health, safety,
and general welfare of its citizenry. Therefore, the City of Sweet Home does ordain as follows:

15.12.015 FINDINGS OF FACT

A. The flood hazard areas of City of Sweet Home are subject to periodic inundation which
may result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce
and governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and
relief, and impairment of the tax base, all of which adversely affect the public health,
safety, and general welfare.

B. These flood losses may be caused by the cumulative effect of obstructions in special
flood hazard areas which increase flood heights and velocities, and when inadequately
anchored, cause damage in other areas. Uses that are inadequately floodproofed,
elevated, or otherwise protected from flood damage also contribute to flood loss.

15.12.020 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

It is the purpose of this ordinance to promote public health, safety, and general welfare, and to
minimize public and private losses due to flooding in flood hazard areas by provisions designed
to:

A. Protect human life and health;

B. Minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control projects;

C. Minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding and generally
undertaken at the expense of the general public;

D. Minimize prolonged business interruptions;

E. Minimize damage to public facilities and utilities such as water and gas mains; electric,
telephone and sewer lines; and streets and bridges located in special flood hazard
areas;

F. Help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of flood
hazard areas so as to minimize blight areas caused by flooding;

G. Notify potential buyers that the property is in a special flood hazard area

H. Notify those who occupy special flood hazard areas that they assume responsibility for
their actions

I. Participate in and maintain eligibility for flood insurance and disaster relief.

City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



15.12.025 METHODS OF REDUCING FLOOD LOSSES
In order to accomplish its purposes, this ordinance includes methods and provisions for:

A. Restricting or prohibiting development which is dangerous to health, safety, and property
due to water or erosion hazards, or which result in damaging increases in erosion or in
flood heights or velocities;

B. Requiring that development vulnerable to floods, including facilities which serve such
uses, be protected against flood damage at the time of initial construction;

C. Controlling the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective
barriers, which help accommodate or channel flood waters;

D. Controlling filling, grading, dredging, and other development which may increase flood
damage;

E. Preventing or regulating the construction of flood barriers which will unnaturally divert
flood waters or may increase flood hazards in other areas.

15.12.030 DEFINITIONS

Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this ordinance shall be interpreted
so as to give them the meaning they have in common usage.

Appeal: A request for a review of the interpretation of any provision of this ordinance or a
request for a variance.

Area of shallow flooding: A designated Zone AO, AH, AR/AO or AR/AH (or VO) on a
community’s Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) with a one percent or greater annual chance of
flooding to an average depth of one to three feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist,
where the path of flooding is unpredictable, and where velocity flow may be evident. Such
flooding is characterized by ponding or sheet flow.

Area of special flood hazard: The land in the floodplain within a community subjectto a 1
percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year. It is shown on the Flood Insurance Rate
Map (FIRM) as Zone A, AO, AH, A1-30, AE, A99, AR. “Special flood hazard area” is
synonymous in meaning and definition with the phrase “area of special flood hazard”.

Base flood: The flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given
year.

Base flood elevation (BFE): The elevation to which floodwater is anticipated to rise during the
base flood.

Basement: Any area of the building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all sides.

Building: See "Structure."

City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



Critical facility: Means a facility for which even a slight chance of flooding might be too great.
Critical facilities include, but are not limited to schools, nursing homes, hospitals, police, fire and
emergency response installations, installations which produce, use, or store hazardous
materials or hazardous waste.

Development: Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including but not
limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or
drilling operations or storage of equipment or materials.

Flood or Flooding:
(a) A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry land
areas from:
(1) The overflow of inland or tidal waters.
(2) The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source.
(3) Mudslides (i.e., mudflows) which are proximately caused by flooding as defined
in paragraph (a)(2) of this definition and are akin to a river of liquid and flowing
mud on the surfaces of normally dry land areas, as when earth is carried by a
current of water and deposited along the path of the current.

(b) The collapse or subsidence of land along the shore of a lake or other body of water as a
result of erosion or undermining caused by waves or currents of water exceeding
anticipated cyclical levels or suddenly caused by an unusually high water level in a
natural body of water, accompanied by a severe storm, or by an unanticipated force of
nature, such as flash flood or an abnormal tidal surge, or by some similarly unusual and
unforeseeable event which results in flooding as defined in paragraph (a)(1) of this
definition.

Flood elevation study: An examination, evaluation and determination of flood hazards and, if
appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations, or an examination, evaluation and
determination of mudslide (i.e., mudflow) and/or flood-related erosion hazards.

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM): The official map of a community, on which the Federal
Insurance Administrator has delineated both the special hazard areas and the risk premium
zones applicable to the community. A FIRM that has been made available digitally is called a
Digital Flood Insurance Rate Map (DFIRM).

Flood Insurance Study (FIS): See “Flood elevation study”.

Flood proofing: Any combination of structural and nonstructural additions, changes, or
adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate risk of flood damage to real estate or
improved real property, water and sanitary facilities, structures, and their contents.

Floodway: The channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must
be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water
surface elevation more than a designated height. Also referred to as "Regulatory Floodway."

Functionally dependent use: A use which cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is
located or carried out in close proximity to water. The term includes only docking facilities, port

City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



facilities that are necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship
building and ship repair facilities, and does not include long term storage or related
manufacturing facilities.

Highest adjacent grade: The highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to
construction next to the proposed walls of a structure.

Historic structure: Any structure that is:

1. Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained by the
Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as
meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National Register;

2. Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the
historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined
by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district;

3. Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic
preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of Interior; or

4. Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic
preservation programs that have been certified either:

a. By an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior or
b. Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states without approved programs.

Letter of Map Change (LOMC): Means an official FEMA determination, by letter, to amend or
revise effective Flood Insurance Rate Maps and Flood Insurance Studies. The following are
categories of LOMCs:

(a) Conditional Letter of Map Amendment (CLOMA): A CLOMA is FEMA’s comment on a
proposed structure or group of structures that would, upon construction, be located on
existing natural ground above the base (1-percent-cannual-chane) flood elevation on a
portion of a legally defined parcel of land that is partially inundated by the base flood.

(b) Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR): A CLOMR is FEMA’s comment on a
proposed project that would, upon construction, affect the hydrologic or hydraulic
characteristics of a flooding source and thus result in the modification of the existing
regulatory floodway, the effective base flood elevations, or the special flood hazard area.

(c) Conditional Letter of Map Revision based on Fill (CLOMR-F): A CLOMR-F is
FEMA’s comment on a proposed project that would, upon construction, result in a
modification of the special flood hazard area through the placement of fill outside the
existing regulatory floodway.

(d) Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA): An official amendment, by letter, to the Flood
Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) based on technical data showing that an existing

City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



structure, parcel of land or portion of a parcel of land that is naturally high ground, (i.e.,
has not been elevated by fill) above the base flood, that was inadvertently included in the
special flood hazard area.

(e) Letter of Map Revision (LOMR): A LOMR is FEMA’s modification to an effective Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), or Flood Boundary and Floodway Map (FBFM), or both.
LOMRs are generally based on the implementation of physical measures that affect the
hydrologic or hydraulic characteristics of a flooding source and thus result in the
modification of the existing regulatory floodway, the effective base flood elevations, or
the SFHA. The LMOR officially revises the FIRM or FBFM, and sometimes the Flood
Insurance Study (FIS) report, and, when appropriate, includes a description of the
modifications. The LOMR is generally accompanied by an annotated copy of the
affected portions of the FIRM, FBFM, or FIS report.

() Letter of Map Revision based on Fill (LOMR-F): A LOMR-F is FEMA’s modification of
the special flood hazard area shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) based on
the placement of fill outside the existing regulatory floodway.

(9) PMR: A PMR is FEMA'’s physical revision and republication of an effective Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) or Flood Insurance Study (FIS) report. PMRs are generally
based on physical measures that affect the hydrologic or hydraulic characteristics of a
flooding source and thus result in the modification of the existing regulatory floodway,
the effective baes flood elevations, or the special flood hazard area.

Lowest floor: The lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement). An
unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or
storage in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building’s lowest floor,
provided that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the
applicable non-elevation design requirements of this ordinance.

Manufactured dwelling: A structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a
permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when
attached to the required utilities. The term "manufactured dwelling" does not include a
"recreational vehicle" and is synonymous with “manufactured home”.

Manufactured dwelling park or subdivision: A parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land divided
into two or more manufactured dwelling lots for rent or sale.

Mean sea level: For purposes of the National Flood Insurance Program, the National Geodetic
Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929 or other datum, to which Base Flood Elevations shown on a
community's Flood Insurance Rate Map are referenced.

New construction: For floodplain management purposes, “new construction” means structures
for which the “start of construction” commenced on or after the effective date of a floodplain
management regulation adopted by City of Sweet Home and includes any subsequent
improvements to such structures.

City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



Recreational vehicle: A vehicle which is:

1. Built on a single chassis;
2. 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection;
3. Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; and

4. Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters
for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use.

Special flood hazard area: See “Area of special flood hazard” for this definition.

Start of construction: Includes substantial improvement and means the date the building
permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation,
addition, placement, or other improvement was within 180 days from the date of the permit. The
actual start means either the first placement of permanent construction of a structure on a site,
such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns, or
any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a manufactured dwelling on a
foundation. Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing,
grading, and filling; nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it
include excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary
forms; nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as
garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure. For a
substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall,
ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the
external dimensions of the building.

Structure: For floodplain management purposes, a walled and roofed building, including a gas
or liquid storage tank, that is principally above ground, as well as a manufactured dwelling.

Substantial damage: Damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of
restoring the structure to its before damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the
market value of the structure before the damage occurred.

Substantial improvement: Any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other improvement
of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value of the
structure before the "start of construction" of the improvement. This term includes structures
which have incurred "substantial damage," regardless of the actual repair work performed. The
term does not, however, include either:

1. Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local
health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local
code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living
conditions; or

City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



2. Any alteration of a "historic structure," provided that the alteration will not preclude the
structure's continued designation as a "historic structure.”

Variance: A grant of relief by City of Sweet Home from the terms of a flood plain management
regulation.

Violation: The failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the
community’s floodplain management regulations. A structure or other development without the
elevation certificate, other certifications, or other evidence of compliance required in this
ordinance is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided.

GENERAL PROVISIONS
15.12.040 LANDS TO WHICH THIS ORDINANCE APPLIES

This ordinance shall apply to all special flood hazard areas within the jurisdiction of City of
Sweet Home.

15.12.050 BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS

The special flood hazard areas identified by the Federal Insurance Administrator in a scientific
and engineering report entitled “The Flood Insurance Study (FIS) for “Flood Insurance Study for
Linn County, Oregon and Incorporated Areas”, dates of September 29, 2010 and the revised
date December 27, 2012, with accompanying Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMS)
41043C0895G, 41043C0911G, 41043C0912G, 41043C0913G, 41043C0914G, 41043C0916G,
41043C0917G, 41043C0918G, and 41043C0919G are hereby adopted by reference and
declared to be a part of this ordinance. The FIS and FIRM panels are on file at City of Sweet
Home City Hall, 3225 Main Street, Sweet Home, Oregon.

15.12.055 COORDINATION WITH STATE OF OREGON SPECIALTY CODES

Pursuant to the requirement established in ORS 455 that the City of Sweet Home administers
and enforces the State of Oregon Specialty Codes, the City of Sweet Home does hereby
acknowledge that the Oregon Specialty Codes contain certain provisions that apply to the
design and construction of buildings and structures located in special flood hazard areas.
Therefore, this ordinance is intended to be administered and enforced in conjunction with the
Oregon Specialty Codes.

15.12.060 COMPLIANCE AND PENALTIES FOR NONCOMPLIANCE
A. COMPLIANCE

All development within special flood hazard areas is subject to the terms of this ordinance
and required to comply with its provisions and all other applicable regulations.

B. PENALTIES FOR NONCOMPLIANCE

City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



No structure or land shall hereafter be constructed, located, extended, converted, or altered
without full compliance with the terms of this ordinance and other applicable regulations.
Violations of the provisions of this ordinance by failure to comply with any of its requirements
(including violations of conditions and safeguards established in connection with conditions)
shall constitute a violation and may be prosecuted under the provisions of Sweet Home
Municipal Code Chapter 9.36 and any amendments thereto. Abatement of the violations of
this Sweet Home Municipal Code Chapter 15.12 can be accomplished by any remedy open
to the city, including using the procedures set out in Sweet Home Municipal Code Chapter
8.04 for abatement of nuisances. Each day that a violation exists is a separate offense.
Nothing contained herein shall prevent the City of Sweet Home from taking such other lawful
action as is necessary to prevent or remedy any violation.

15.12.065 ABROGATION AND SEVERABILITY
A. ABROGATION

This ordinance is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing easements,
covenants, or deed restrictions. However, where this ordinance and another
ordinance, easement, covenant, or deed restriction conflict or overlap, whichever
imposes the more stringent restrictions shall prevail.

B. SEVERABILITY

This ordinance and the various parts thereof are hereby declared to be severable. If
any section clause, sentence, or phrase of the Ordinance is held to be invalid or
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no
way effect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

15.12.070 INTERPRETATION
In the interpretation and application of this ordinance, all provisions shall be:

A. Considered as minimum requirements;
B. Liberally construed in favor of the governing body; and

C. Deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under state statutes.
15.12.080 WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY
A. WARNING
The degree of flood protection required by this ordinance is considered reasonable for
regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger

floods can and will occur on rare occasions. Flood heights may be increased by man-
made or natural causes. This ordinance does not imply that land outside the areas of

City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



special flood hazards or uses permitted within such areas will be free from flooding or
flood damages.

B. DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY

This ordinance shall not create liability on the part of the City of Sweet Home, any officer
or employee thereof, or the Federal Insurance Administrator for any flood damages that
result from reliance on this ordinance or any administrative decision lawfully made
hereunder.

15.12.100 DESIGNATION OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR

The City Manager, and the City Manager’s designee, is hereby appointed to administer,
implement, and enforce this ordinance by granting or denying development permits in
accordance with its provisions. The Floodplain Administrator may delegate authority to
implement these provisions.

15.12.120 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR

Duties of the floodplain administrator, or their designee, shall include, but not be limited to:

A. PERMIT REVIEW

Review all development permits to determine that:

1.
2.

The permit requirements of this ordinance have been satisfied;

All other required local, state, and federal permits have been obtained and
approved.

Review all development permits to determine if the proposed development is
located in a floodway. If located in the floodway assure that the floodway
provisions of this ordinance in section 15.12.180 are met; and

Review all development permits to determine if the proposed development is
located in an area where Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is available either
through the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) or from another authoritative source. If
BFE data is not available then ensure compliance with the provisions of sections
15.12.120(G); and

Provide to building officials the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) and freeboard,
applicable to any building requiring a development permit.

Review all development permit applications to determine if the proposed
development qualifies as a substantial improvement as defined in section
15.12.030.

Review all development permits to determine if the proposed development
activity is a watercourse alteration. If a watercourse alteration is proposed,
ensure compliance with the provisions in section 15.12.120(A).

10

City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



8.

Review all development permits to determine if the proposed development
activity includes the placement of fill or excavation.

B. INFORMATION TO BE OBTAINED AND MAINTAINED

The following information shall be obtained and maintained and shall be made available
for public inspection as needed:

1.

10.

11.

Obtain, record, and maintain the actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level)
of the lowest floor (including basements) and all attendant utilities of all new or
substantially improved structures where Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is
provided through the Flood Insurance Study (FIS), Flood Insurance Rate Map
(FIRM), or obtained in accordance with section 15.12.120(G).

Obtain and record the elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of the natural
grade of the building site for a structure prior to the start of construction and the
placement of any fill and ensure that the requirements of sections 15.12.180
and 15.12.120(B) are adhered to.

Upon placement of the lowest floor of a structure (including basement) but prior
to further vertical construction, obtain documentation, prepared and sealed by a
professional licensed surveyor or engineer, certifying the elevation (in relation to
mean sea level) of the lowest floor (including basement).

Where base flood elevation data are utilized, obtain As-built certification of the
elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of the lowest floor (including basement)
prepared and sealed by a professional licensed surveyor or engineer, prior to
the final inspection.

Maintain all Elevation Certificates (EC) submitted to City of Sweet Home;

Obtain, record, and maintain the elevation (in relation to mean sea level) to
which the structure and all attendant utilities were floodproofed for all new or
substantially improved floodproofed structures where allowed under this
ordinance and where Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is provided through the
FIS, FIRM, or obtained in accordance with section 15.12.150(G).

Maintain all floodproofing certificates required under this ordinance;

Record and maintain all variance actions, including justification for their
issuance;

Obtain and maintain all hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed as
required under section 15.12.180.

Record and maintain all Substantial Improvement and Substantial Damage
calculations and determinations as required under section 15.12.120(F).

Maintain for public inspection all records pertaining to the provisions of this
ordinance.

C. COMMUNITY BOUNDARY ALTERATIONS

11

City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



The Floodplain Administrator shall notify the Federal Insurance Administrator in writing
whenever the boundaries of the community have been modified by annexation or the
community has otherwise assumed authority or no longer has authority to adopt and enforce
floodplain management regulations for a particular area, to ensure that all Flood Hazard
Boundary Maps (FHBM) and Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) accurately represent the
community’s boundaries. Include within such notification a copy of a map of the community
suitable for reproduction, clearly delineating the new corporate limits or new area for which
the community has assumed or relinquished floodplain management regulatory authority.

D. WATERCOURSE ALTERATIONS

Notify adjacent communities, the Department of Land Conservation and Development, and
other appropriate state and federal agencies, prior to any alteration or relocation of a
watercourse, and submit evidence of such notification to the Federal Insurance
Administration. This notification shall be provided by the applicant to the Federal Insurance
Administration as a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) along with either:

A. A proposed maintenance plan to assure the flood carrying capacity within the
altered or relocated portion of the watercourse is maintained; or

B. Certification by a registered professional engineer that the project has been
designed to retain its flood carrying capacity without periodic maintenance.

The applicant shall be required to submit a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR)
when required under section 15.12.120(E). Ensure compliance with all applicable
requirements in sections 15.12.120(E) and 15.12.150(A).

E. REQUIREMENT TO SUBMIT NEW TECHNICAL DATA

A community’s base flood elevations may increase or decrease resulting from physical
changes affecting flooding conditions. As soon as practicable, but not later than six months
after the date such information becomes available, a community shall notify the Federal
Insurance Administrator of the changes by submitting technical or scientific data in
accordance with Section 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Sub-Section 65.3.
The community may require the applicant to submit such data and review fees required for
compliance with this section through the applicable FEMA Letter of Map Change (LOMC)
process.

The Floodplain Administrator shall require a Conditional Letter of Map Revision prior to the
issuance of a floodplain development permit for:

1. Proposed floodway encroachments that increase the base flood elevation; and

2. Proposed development which increases the base flood elevation by more than
one foot in areas where FEMA has provided base flood elevations but no
floodway.

12
City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



An applicant shall notify FEMA within six (6) months of project completion when an applicant
has obtained a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) from FEMA. This natification to
FEMA shall be provided as a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR).

The applicant shall be responsible for preparing all technical data to support CLOMR/LOMR
applications and paying any processing or application fees associated with the
CLOMR/LOMR-f

The Floodplain Administrator shall be under no obligation to sign the Community
Acknowledgement Form, which is part of the CLOMR/LOMR application, until the applicant
demonstrates that the project will or has met the requirements of this code and all applicable
state and federal laws.

F. SUBSTANTIAL IMPROVEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL DAMAGE ASSESSMENTS
AND DETERMINATIONS

Conduct Substantial Improvement (Sl) (as defined in section 2.0) reviews for all structural
development proposal applications and maintain a record of Sl calculations within permit
files in accordance with section 15.12.120(B). Conduct Substantial Damage (SD) (as
defined in section 2.0) assessments when structures are damaged due to a natural hazard
event or other causes. Make SD determinations whenever structures within the special flood
hazard area (as established in section 15.12.050) are damaged to the extent that the cost of
restoring the structure to its before damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of
the market value of the structure before the damage occurred.

15.12.130 ESTABLISHMENT OF DEVELOPMENT PERMIT
A. FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT REQUIRED

A development permit shall be obtained before construction or development begins within
any area horizontally within the special flood hazard area established in section 15.12.050.
The development permit shall be required for all structures, including manufactured
dwellings, and for all other development, as defined in section 15.12.030, including fill and
other development activities.

B. APPLICATION FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

Application for a development permit may be made on forms furnished by the Floodplain
Administrator and may include, but not be limited to, plans in duplicate drawn to scale
showing the nature, location, dimensions, and elevations of the area in question; existing or
proposed structures, fill, storage of materials, drainage facilities, and the location of the
foregoing. Specifically the following information is required:

1. Inriverine flood zones, the proposed elevation (in relation to mean sea level), of the
lowest floor (including basement) and all attendant utilities of all new and
substantially improved structures; in accordance with the requirements of section
15.12.120(B).

13
City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



2. Proposed elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any non-residential
structure will be floodproofed.

3.  Certification by a registered professional engineer or architect licensed in the State of
Oregon that the floodproofing methods proposed for any non-residential structure
meet the floodproofing criteria for non-residential structures in section
15.12.170(C)(3).

4.  Description of the extent to which any watercourse will be altered or relocated.

5.  Base Flood Elevation data for subdivision proposals or other development when
required per sections 15.12.120(A) and 15.12.150(F).

6.  Substantial improvement calculation for any improvement, addition, reconstruction,
renovation, or rehabilitation of an existing structure.

7.  The amount and location of any fill or excavation activities proposed.

15.12.140 VARIANCE PROCEDURE

The issuance of a variance is for floodplain management purposes only. Flood insurance
premium rates are determined by federal statute according to actuarial risk and will not be
modified by the granting of a variance.

A. CONDITIONS FOR VARIANCES

1. Generally, variances may be issued for new construction and substantial
improvements to be erected on a lot of one-half acre or less in size
contiguous to and surrounded by lots with existing structures constructed
below the base flood level, in conformance with the provisions of sections
15.12.140 (3) and (5), and 15.12.140(C). As the lot size increases beyond
one-half acre, the technical justification required for issuing a variance
increases.

2. Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the
minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief.

3. Variances shall not be issued within any floodway if any increase in flood
levels during the base flood discharge would result.

4. Variances shall only be issued upon:
a. A showing of good and sufficient cause;

b. A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in
exceptional hardship to the applicant;

c. A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in
increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety,
extraordinary public expense, create nuisances, cause fraud on or
victimization of the public, or conflict with existing laws or ordinances.

5. Variances may be issued by a community for new construction and
substantial improvements and for other development necessary for the
conduct of a functionally dependent use provided that the criteria of section
15.12.140(2) — (4) are met, and the structure or other development is

14
City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



protected by methods that minimize flood damages during the base flood and
create no additional threats to public safety.’

B. APPEAL BOARD
1. The City Council shall hear and decide appeals and requests for variances
from the requirements of Sweet Home Municipal Code Chapter 15.12.

2. The City Council shall hear and decide appeals when it is alleged there is an
error in any requirement, decision or determination made in the enforcement
or administration of Sweet Home Municipal Code Chapter 15.12.

3. Those aggrieved by the decision of the City Council may appeal the decision
as provided for by law.

4. In passing upon the applications, the City Council shall consider technical
evaluations, relevant factors and standards specified in other sections of this
chapter:

a. The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the injury
of others;

b. The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage;

c. The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood
damage and the effect of such damage on individual owners;

d. The importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to the
community;

e. The necessity to the facility of a waterfront location, where applicable;

f. The availability of alternative locations for the proposed use which are
not subject to flooding or erosion damage;

g. The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated
development;

h. The relationship of the proposed use to the Comprehensive Plan;

i. The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and
emergency vehicles;

j-  The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and sediment
transport of the flood waters expected at the site; and

k. The costs of providing government services during and after flood
conditions, including maintenance and repair of public utilities and
facilities such as sewer and water systems, streets and bridges.

5. Upon consideration of the factors of 15.12.140(A) of this section, the City
Council may attach such conditions to the granting of a variance as it deems
necessary to further the purposes of this chapter.

6. The city shall maintain the records of all appeal actions and report any
variances to the Federal Insurance Administration upon request.

C. VARIANCE NOTIFICATION

15
City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice that the
issuance of a variance to construct a structure below the Base Flood Elevation will
result in increased premium rates for flood insurance and that such construction
below the base flood elevation increases risks to life and property. Such notification
and a record of all variance actions, including justification for their issuance shall be
maintained in accordance with section 15.12.120(B).

15.12.150 PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION- GENERAL STANDARDS
In all special flood hazard areas, the following standards shall be adhered to:
A. ALTERATION OF WATERCOURSES

Require that the flood carrying capacity within the altered or relocated portion of said
watercourse is maintained. Require that maintenance is provided within the altered
or relocated portion of said watercourse to ensure that the flood carrying capacity is
not diminished. Require compliance with sections 15.12.120(D) and 15.12.120(E).

B. ANCHORING

1. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be anchored to
prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure resulting
from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy.

2. All manufactured dwellings shall be anchored per section 15.12.170(C)(4).

C. CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS AND METHODS

1. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed with
materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage.

2. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed using
methods and practices that minimize flood damage.

D. UTILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

1. WATER SUPPLY, SANITARY SEWER, AND ON-SITE WASTE DISPOSAL
SYSTEMS

a. All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to
minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system.

b. New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to
minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the systems and
discharge from the systems into flood waters.

c. On-site waste disposal systems shall be located to avoid impairment to
them or contamination from them during flooding consistent with the
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality.

16
City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



2. ELECTRICAL, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, AND OTHER EQUIPMENT

Electrical, heating, ventilating, air-conditioning, plumbing, duct systems, and
other equipment and service facilities shall be elevated one (1) foot or more
above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) or shall be designed and installed to
prevent water from entering or accumulating within the components and to
resist hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and stresses, including the effects
of buoyancy, during conditions of flooding. In addition, electrical, heating,
ventilating, air-conditioning, plumbing, duct systems, and other equipment
and service facilities shall meet all the requirements of this section if replaces
as part of a substantial improvement.

E.TANKS

1. Underground tanks shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse and lateral
movement under conditions of the base flood.

2. Above-ground tanks shall be installed at or above the base flood level or shall be
anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral movement under conditions of
the base flood.

F. SUBDIVISION PROPOSALS & OTHER PROPOSED DEVELOPMENTS

1. All new subdivision proposals and other proposed new developments (including
proposals for manufactured dwelling parks and subdivisions) greater than 50
lots or 5 acres, whichever is the lesser, shall include within such proposals,
Base Flood Elevation data.

2. All new subdivision proposals and other proposed new developments (including
proposals for manufactured dwelling parks and subdivisions) shall:

a. Be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage.

Have public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and
water systems located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood
damage.

c. Have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood
hazards.

G. USE OF OTHER BASE FLOOD DATA

When Base Flood Elevation data has not been provided in accordance with section
15.12.050 the local floodplain administrator shall obtain, review, and reasonably
utilize any Base Flood Elevation data available from a federal, state, or other source,
in order to administer section 15.12.150 and 15.12.170. All new subdivision
proposals and other proposed new developments (including proposals for

17
City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



manufactured dwelling parks and subdivisions) must meet the requirements of
section 15.12.150(F).

Base Flood Elevations shall be determined for development proposals that are 5
acres or more in size or are 50 lots or more, whichever is lesser in any A zone that
does not have an established base flood elevation. Development proposals located
within a riverine unnumbered A Zone shall be reasonably safe from flooding; the test
of reasonableness includes use of historical data, high water marks, FEMA provided
Base Level Engineering data, and photographs of past flooding, etc... where
available. In unnumbered A zones, when no base flood elevation data is available,
the minimum elevation requirement is two feet above the highest adjacent grade to
reasonably safe from flooding. Failure to elevate at least two feet above grade in
these zones may result in higher insurance rates.

H. STRUCTURES LOCATED IN MULTIPLE OR PARTIAL FLOOD ZONES
In coordination with the State of Oregon Specialty Codes:

A. When a structure is located in multiple flood zones on the community’s Flood
Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) the provisions for the more restrictive flood zone
shall apply.

B. When a structure is partially located in a special flood hazard area, the entire
structure shall meet the requirements for new construction and substantial
improvements.

15.12.160 CRITICAL FACILITIES

Construction of new critical facilities shall be, to the extent possible, located outside the
limits of the special flood hazard area. Construction of new critical facilities shall be
permissible within the SFHA only if no feasible alternative site is available. Critical facilities
constructed within the SFHA shall have the lowest floor elevated three (3) feet above the
Base Flood Elevation (BFE) or to the height of the 500-year flood, whichever is higher.
Access to and from the critical facility shall also be protected to the height utilized above.
Floodproofing and sealing measures must be taken to ensure that toxic substances will not
be displaced by or released into floodwaters.

15.12.170 SPECIFIC STANDARDS FOR RIVERINE (INCLUDING ALL NON-COASTAL)
FLOOD ZONES

These specific standards shall apply to all new construction and substantial improvements in
addition to the General Standards contained in section 15.12.150 of this ordinance.

A. FLOOD OPENINGS

All new construction and substantial improvements with fully enclosed areas below
the lowest floor (excluding basements) are subject to the following requirements.
Enclosed areas below the Base Flood Elevation, including crawl spaces shall:

18
City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



a. Be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on walls by
allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters;

b. Be used solely for parking, storage, or building access;

c. Be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect or meet or exceed
all of the following minimum criteria:

i. A minimum of two openings,

ii. The total net area of non-engineered openings shall be not less than one
(1) square inch for each square foot of enclosed area, where the
enclosed area is measured on the exterior of the enclosure walls,

iii. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade.

iv. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other
coverings or devices provided that they shall allow the automatic flow of
floodwater into and out of the enclosed areas and shall be accounted for
in the determination of the net open area.

v. All additional higher standards for flood openings in the State of Oregon
Residential Specialty Codes Section R322.2.2 shall be complied with
when applicable.

B. GARAGES

1. Attached garages may be constructed with the garage floor slab below the Base
Flood Elevation (BFE) in riverine flood zones, if the following requirements are
met:

i. If located within a floodway the proposed garage must comply with
the requirements of section 15.12.180.

ii. The floors are at or above grade on not less than one side;

iii. The garage is used solely for parking, building access, and/or
storage;

iv. The garage is constructed with flood openings in compliance with
section 15.12.170(A) to equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior
walls by allowing for the automatic entry and exit of floodwater.

v. The portions of the garage constructed below the BFE are
constructed with materials resistant to flood damage;

vi. The garage is constructed in compliance with the standards in
section 15.12.150; and

vii. The garage is constructed with electrical, and other service facilities
located and installed so as to prevent water from entering or
accumulating within the components during conditions of the base
flood.

2. Detached garages must be constructed in compliance with the standards for
appurtenant structures in section 15.12.170(C)(6) or non-residential structures in
section 15.12.170(C)(3) depending on the square footage of the garage.

19
City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



C. FOR RIVERINE (NON-COASTAL) SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS WITH BASE
FLOOD ELEVATIONS

In addition to the general standards listed in section 15.12.150 the following specific
standards shall apply in Riverine (non-coastal) special flood hazard areas with Base
Flood Elevations (BFE): Zones A1-A30, AH, and AE.

1. BEFORE REGULATORY FLOODWAY

In areas where a regulatory floodway has not been designated, no new
construction, substantial improvement, or other development (including fill)
shall be permitted within Zones A1-30 and AE on the community’s Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), unless it is demonstrated that the cumulative
effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing
and anticipated development, will not increase the water surface elevation of
the base flood more than one foot at any point within the community.

2. RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION

a. New construction and substantial improvement of any residential
structure shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated one
foot or more above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE).

b. Enclosed areas below the lowest floor shall comply with the flood opening
requirements in section 15.12.170(A).

3. NON-RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION

a. New construction and substantial improvement of any commercial,
industrial, or other non-residential structure shall:

i. Have the lowest floor, including basement elevated at or above the
Base Flood Elevation (BFE); Or, together with attendant utility and
sanitary facilities.

ii. Be floodproofed so that below the base flood level the structure is
watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of
water;

iii. Have structural components capable of resisting hydrostatic and
hydrodynamic loads and effects of buoyancy.

iv. Be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect that
the design and methods of construction are in accordance with
accepted standards of practice for meeting provisions of this section
based on their development and/or review of the structural design,
specifications and plans. Such certifications shall be provided to the
Floodplain Administrator as set forth section 15.12.120(B).

b. Non-residential structures that are elevated, not floodproofed, shall
comply with the standards for enclosed areas below the lowest floor in
section 15.12.170(A).

20
City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



c. Applicants floodproofing non-residential buildings shall be notified that
flood insurance premiums will be based on rates that are one (1) foot
below the floodproofed level (e.g. a building floodproofed to the base
flood level will be rated as one (1) foot below.

d. Applicants shall supply a maintenance plan for the entire structure to
include but not limited to: exterior envelop of structure; all penetrations to
the exterior of the structure; all shields, gates, barriers, or components
designed to provide floodproofing protection to the structure; all seals or
gaskets for shields, gates, barriers, or components; and, the location of
all shields, gates, barriers, and components, as well as all associated
hardware, and any materials or specialized tools necessary to seal the
structure

e. Applicants shall supply an Emergency Action Plan (EAP) for the
installation and sealing of the structure prior to a flooding event that
clearly identifies what triggers the EAP and who is responsible for
enacting the EAP.

4. MANUFACTURED DWELLINGS

a. New or substantially improved manufactured dwellings supported on solid
foundation walls shall be constructed with flood openings that comply with
section 15.12.170(A);

b. The bottom of the longitudinal chassis frame beam shall be at or above
Base Flood Elevation;

c. New or substantially improved manufactured dwellings shall be anchored
to prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral movement during the base flood.
Anchoring methods may include, but are not limited to, use of over-the-
top or frame ties to ground anchors (Reference FEMA'’s “Manufactured
Home Installation in Flood Hazard Areas” guidebook for additional
techniques), and;

d. Electrical crossover connections shall be a minimum of twelve (12) inches
above Base Flood Elevation (BFE).

5. RECREATIONAL VEHICLES
Recreational vehicles placed on sites are required to:

a. Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days; and

b. Be fully licensed and ready for highway use, on its wheels or jacking
system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and
security devices, and has no permanently attached additions; or

c. Meet the requirements of section 15.12.170(C)(4), including the
anchoring and elevation requirements for manufactured dwellings.

6. APPURTENANT (ACCESSORY) STRUCTURES

21
City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



Relief from elevation or floodproofing requirements for residential and non-
residential structures in Riverine (Non-Coastal) flood zones may be granted
for appurtenant structures that meet the following requirements:

a. Appurtenant structures located partially or entirely within the floodway
must comply with requirements for development within a floodway found
in section 15.12.180.

b. Appurtenant structures must only be used for parking, access, and/or
storage and shall not be used for human habitation;

c. In compliance with State of Oregon Specialty Codes, appurtenant
structures on properties that are zoned residential are limited to one-story
structures less than 200 square feet, or 400 square feet if the property is
greater than two (2) acres in area and the proposed appurtenant structure
will be located a minimum of 20 feet from all property lines. Appurtenant
structures on properties that are zoned as non-residential are limited in
size to 120 square feet.

d. The portions of the appurtenant structure located below the Base Flood
Elevation must be built using flood resistant materials;

e. The appurtenant structure must be adequately anchored to prevent
flotation, collapse, and lateral movement of the structure resulting from
hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy,
during conditions of the base flood.

f.  The appurtenant structure must be designed and constructed to equalize
hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls and comply with the
requirements for flood openings in section 15.12.170(A);

g. Appurtenant structures shall be located and constructed to have low
damage potential;

h. Appurtenant structures shall not be used to store toxic material, oil, or
gasoline, or any priority persistent pollutant identified by the Oregon
Department of Environmental Quality unless confined in a tank installed
incompliance with section 15.12.150(E).

i. Appurtenant structures shall be constructed with electrical, mechanical,
and other service facilities located and installed so as to prevent water
from entering or accumulating within the components during conditions of
the base flood.

15.12.180 FLOODWAYS

Located within the special flood hazard areas established in section 15.12.050 are
areas designated as floodways. Since the floodway is an extremely hazardous area
due to the velocity of the floodwaters which carry debris, potential projectiles, and
erosion potential, the following provisions apply:

A. Prohibit encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial
improvements, and other development within the adopted regulatory floodway
unless:

22
City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



1. Certification by a registered professional civil engineer is provided
demonstrating through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in
accordance with standard engineering practice that the proposed
encroachment shall not result in any increase in flood levels within the
community during the occurrence of the base flood discharge;

Or,

2. A community may permit encroachments within the adopted regulatory
floodway that would result in an increase in base flood elevations,
provided that a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) is applied for
and approved by the Federal Insurance Administrator, and the
requirements for such revision as established under Volume 44 of the
Code of Federal Regulations, section 65.12 are fulfilled.

a. If an encroachment proposal resulting in an increase in Base
Flood Elevation meets the following criteria:

a) Is for the purpose of fish enhancement,

b) Does not involve the placement of any structures (as
defined in section 2.0) within the floodway,

c) Has a feasibility analysis completed documenting
that fish enhancement will be achieved through the
proposed project,

d) Has a maintenance plan in place to ensure that the stream
carrying capacity is not impacted by the fish enhancement
project,

e) Has approval by the National Marine Fisheries Service, the
State of Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife, or the
equivalent federal or state agency, and

f) Has evidence to support that no existing structures will be
negatively impacted by the proposed activity;

Then an approved CLOMR may be required prior to approval of a
floodplain permit.

B. New installation of manufactured dwellings are prohibited (2002 Oregon
Manufactured Dwelling and Park Specialty Code). Manufactured dwellings may
only be located in floodways according to one of the following conditions:

1. If the manufactured dwelling already exists in the floodway, the
placement was permitted at the time of the original installation, and
the continued use is not a threat to life, health, property, or the
general welfare of the public; or

2. A new manufactured dwelling is replacing an existing manufactured
dwelling whose original placement was permitted at the time of
installation and the replacement home will not be a threat to life,
health, property, or general welfare of the pubic and it meets the
following criteria:

a. Asrequired by 44 CFR Ch. 1, Subpart 60.3(d)(3) and
15.12.180(A)(2), it must be demonstrated through
hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in
accordance with standard engineering practices that the

23
City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



manufactured dwelling and any accessory buildings,
accessory structures, or property improvements
(encroachments) will not result in any increase in flood
levels during the occurrence of the base flood discharge;

b. The replacement manufactured dwelling shall have the
bottom of the longitudinal chassis frame beam elevated to
or above the base flood elevation and any accessory
buildings or structures (encroachments) shall have the
finished floor elevated a minimum of 18 inches above the
BFE as identified on the Flood Insurance Rate Map;

c. The replacement manufactured dwelling is placed and
secured to a foundation support system designed by an
Oregon professional engineer or architect and approved by
the city and anchored per section 15.12.170(C)(4);

d. The replacement manufactured dwelling, its foundation
supports, and any accessory buildings, or property
improvements (encroachments) do not displace water to
the degree that it causes a rise in the water level or diverts
water in a manner that causes erosion or damage to other
properties;

e. The location of a replacement manufactured dwelling is
allowed by Sweet Home Municipal Code Title 17;

f. Electrical crossover connections shall be a minimum of
twelve (12) inches above the base flood elevation; and

g. Any other requirement deemed necessary by the city.

C. If the requirements of section 15.12.180(A) are satisfied, all new construction,
substantial improvements, and other development shall comply with all other
applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of section 15.12.150 and 15.12.170.

24
City of Sweet Home Flood Hazard Ordinance — Effective June, 2020



	2020-04-06 Agenda
	2020-03-02 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
	Staff Report LA 20-01_3_30
	Draft Ordinance 3_30

